# **AGREEMENT**

by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION

of the
BEDFORD CENTRAL
SCHOOL DISTRICT

CSEA Local 1000, AFSCME,
AFL-CIO



Bedford CSD Unit #9243 Westchester County Local 860

July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2024

# Table of Contents

PREAMBLE	1
WITNESSETH:	1
ARTICLE 1 - Recognition of Association	1
ARTICLE 2 - Association Rights	1
ARTICLE 3 - Management Rights Clause	3
ARTICLE 4 - Negotiation Procedures	3
ARTICLE 5 - Organization of the Staff	4
ARTICLE 6 - Personal Illness.	
ARTICLE 7 - Death or Illness in Family	9
ARTICLE 8 - Personal Business	10
ARTICLE 9 - Jury Duty	11
ARTICLE 10 - Adjustments to Leave Day Accruals	11
ARTICLE 11 - Labor Management Committee	11
ARTICLE 12 - Disability Due to Maternity	12
ARTICLE 13 - Snow Days and Storm-Related Closings	12
ARTICLE 14 - Half-Day, District-Wide Dismissal	13
ARTICLE 15 – Holidays	13
ARTICLE 16 - Vacations	14
ARTICLE 17 - Clerical/Non-Instructional Work Schedule	15
ARTICLE 18-Custodial Operations Workers	17
ARTICLE 19-Transportation Workers	19
ARTICLE 20 - Technical Specialists	20
ARTICLE 21 - Safety Monitors	21
ARTICLE 22 - Ten-Month Employees Working Between 25 to 35 Hours	22
ARTICLE 23 - Out-of-Title Pay	23
ARTICLE 24 - Personal Effects	23
ARTICLE 25 - Contracting Out	23
ARTICLE 26 - Personnel Files	
ARTICLE 27 - Travel.	24
ARTICLE 28 - Tenure	24

ARTICLE 29 - Seniority	25
ARTICLE 30 - Payment Schedule	
ARTICLE 31 - Physical Examination	
ARTICLE 32 - Grievance Procedure	27
ARTICLE 33 - Health Insurance	31
ARTICLE 34 - Life Insurance	
ARTICLE 35 - Disability Insurance	34
ARTICLE 36 - Retirement	34
ARTICLE 37 - Retirement Award	35
ARTICLE38-Longevity	36
ARTICLE 39 - Uniforms	
ARTICLE 40 - Dental Insurance	37
ARTICLE 41 - Continuity of Employment	37
ARTICLE 42 - General Provisions	
ARTICLE 43 - No Strike Clause	39
ARTICLE 44 - Duration of Agreement	39
ARTICLE 45 - Changes in Compensation	
APPENDIX "A" – Technical Differentials/Stipends	
APPENDIX "B" - Non-Maritial Domestic Partners/Affidavit of Domestic Partnership	

#### **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement is entered into effective the first day of July 2021, by and between the Board of Education of the Bedford Central School District, Bedford, New York, hereinafter called the "Board", and the Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., AFSCME/AFL-CIO, (Local 860, Westchester County and the Bedford Central School Unit #9243).

#### WITNESSETH:

Whereas, the parties have, pursuant to Article Fourteen of the Civil Service Law, negotiated with respect to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, and have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement, in consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

### ARTICLE 1 - Recognition of Association

The board hereby recognizes the Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., AFSCME/AFL-CIO (Local 860, Westchester County and the Bedford Central School Unit #9243) as the sole negotiating representative for all members of the non-instructional staff of Bedford Central School District who work twenty (20) hours or more per week, including, but not limited to, custodial and grounds staff, transportation department employees, office personnel, teacher aides, instructional assistants, and/or any of the other job classifications set forth in Article 5.1, but excluding the Treasurer, the District Clerk, the Director of Buildings and Grounds, the Assistant Director of Facilities, the Director of Transportation, the Television Production Specialist, the Database Manager, the Secretary to the Superintendent, the Secretary to the Assistant Superintendent for Business (confidential), the Personnel Assistant to the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources (confidential) and all other administrators of non-instructional personnel as the Board of Education may from time-to-time employ.

### **ARTICLE 2** - Association Rights

2.1 Meetings: Use of Facilities

The Association shall have the right to use appropriate areas in school buildings for

meetings after normal working hours. The use of appropriate areas shall be arranged with the building principal in advance and shall be subject to prior reservation of the facilities. All requests for building use shall conform to the Board's rules and regulations provided, however, that there shall be no cost to the Association for such use.

#### 2.2 Leave to Attend Organization Meetings

The president or designated officials of the Association may request and shall be granted leave to attend seminars and/or Civil Service Employees Association Conferences. Such leave shall not exceed a total of four (4) days per year and shall be without loss of pay or charge to sick or personal leave.

#### 2.3 President's Release Time

Before beginning the school year, the Superintendent, the Association President and the Principal of the school in which the President works will meet to seek joint agreement on release time for the President of the Association and/or a vice-president to act on his/her behalf.

#### 2.4 Dues Deduction

The District agrees that upon presentation of dues deduction authorization cards signed by the individual employee to which this Agreement is applicable, that it shall make payroll deductions from the wages of such unit members in the amount designated by the Union as a membership dues deduction within thirty (30) days of receiving the signed dues authorization card. Employee authorization shall be in writing and in a manner consistent with the law.

The Board agrees to transmit such lawfully authorized deductions to the Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., 143 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York.

#### **2.5** Bulletin Boards

The Association shall have the right to post notices and communications on bulletin boards designated for this purpose by the administration of each building in the district.

#### 2.6 Visiting Rights

The president of the Westchester Chapter of the CSEA or his designated agent shall have the right to visit the facilities of the district for the purpose of adjusting grievances and administering terms of the Agreement.

#### 2.7 New Employees

All new employees are to be made immediately known to the president of the CSEA (local unit). Such notice shall include name, salary, and Civil Service status. It shall be the responsibility of the CSEA to provide a membership packet to each new employee concerning membership in the CSEA including a copy of the contract between the Board and the Association.

### ARTICLE 3 - Management Rights Clause

The Union recognizes that management of the School District, the control of its properties and maintenance of order and efficiency are solely the responsibility of the Board. The Union further recognizes that the Board, among other things, shall have the right from time to time to make such rules and regulations as it deems necessary, provided such rules shall not be inconsistent with the express provisions of this Agreement.

### **ARTICLE 4** - Negotiation Procedures

#### 4.1 Commencement Date

The Board and the Association shall enter into good faith negotiations over a successor Agreement for the following school year no later than February 15, 2023.

### 4.2 Exchange of Positions

During the negotiations, the Board and the Association shall present relevant data, exchange points of view, and make proposals and counterproposals. Each party shall, within reason, make available records, data and information in its possession which may be pertinent to a topic under negotiation.

#### 4.3 Tentative Agreements

All tentative agreements made at the negotiating table will be initialed by the chief spokesman of both parties at the meeting following said agreement on that item as the first order of business for that meeting.

#### 4.4 Impasse

An impasse in negotiations shall occur if the parties concur that they are at an impasse. If such occurs, either party may request the services of the Public Employees Relations Board to assist the parties to reach an agreement. Such mediation and fact-finding shall be governed by the provisions of Section 209 of the Civil Service Law. The conclusions and recommendations of the Public Employment Relations Board shall be advisory only and shall not be binding on either the Association or the Board.

### ARTICLE 5 - Organization of the Staff

#### 5.1 Job Classifications

The present job classifications represented by the Association are as follows:

#### 1. Clerical

- a. office assistant (automated systems)
- b. secretary
- c. account clerk
- d. benefits coordinator
- e. clerk/school monitor
- f. clerk/school monitor (Spanish speaking)
- g. senior office assistant (automated systems)
- h. senior office assistant (automated systems Spanish speaking)
- i. payroll clerk
- j. secretary to school principal
- k. secretary to school official
- 1. senior account clerk
- m. personnel assistant
- n. database specialist
- o. purchasing agent
- p. senior bookkeeper

- q. seniorpayroll clerk
- r. registrar
- s. benefits assistant

#### 2. Aides

- a. teacher aide
- b. teacher aide (1-1)
- c. bilingual teacher aide
- d. job coach
- e. community aide Spanish-speaking

#### 3. Assistants

- a. instructional assistant
- b. bilingual instructional assistant
- c. lab assistant

#### 4. Custodial

- a. custodial worker
- b. head custodial worker
- c. maintenance mechanic
- d. maintenance foreman (buildings)
- e. maintenance foreman (grounds)
- f. grounds mechanic

#### 5. Technology

- a. computer aide
- b. technical assistant
- c. junior network specialist
- d. network specialist
- e. theatre technical assistant
- f. television assistant
- g. research assistant
- h. network administrator
- i. information system analyst

- 6. Transportation
  - a. dispatcher
  - b. routing supervisor
- 7. Safety Monitor
- 8. Transition Specialist

#### 5.2 Appointment

The Board of Education will comply with Civil Service Regulations in its employment practices.

#### **5.3** Posting of Positions

Employee requests for change of employment status shall be kept on file in the personnel office. Copies of these requests shall also be filed with CSEA. These requests shall be renewed annually by the employee and shall be reviewed annually by the district.

When a position becomes available, employees who have indicated an interest in the position shall be informed by the personnel office and may formally apply. Vacancies shall also be posted five (5) working days or more prior to filling the position during the school year and seven (7) working days or more prior to filling the position during the summer. Employees who desire to apply for such vacancies shall submit their applications in writing to the personnel office within the time limits specified in the notice. Qualified employee applicants shall be provided an interview for such positions, along with other applicants. All appointments to vacancies and/or promotional positions shall be based upon qualifications, experience, performance, and attendance, and subject to Civil Service rules and regulations. In the event that all applicants are in-house candidates, and all of the above factors are equal, as determined in the sole discretion of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee, then seniority will be the determining factor. In the event that an outside candidate applies for a particular position and is being considered along with an inhouse candidate or candidates, seniority shall be one of the factors for consideration as opposed to the tiebreaker. In the event that an outside candidate is being considered along with an in-house candidate and the above factors are deemed to be equal in the sole discretion of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee, then the in-house candidate shall be appointed to the position.

Any employee who desires a transfer to another building in the same job title may give notice to the District in writing. If the request is denied, the District shall so advise the CSEA Unit President in writing, with the reasons for the denial.

#### 5.4 Initial Placement on Salary

In determining initial placement on the salary schedule at full step, the administration shall be guided by the training and experience of the individual, subject to the following limitations:

Classification	New Employees Shall Not Be Hired Above Step
Office Assistant (Automated Systems)	3
Clerk/School Monitor	3
Sr. Office Assistant (Automated Systems)	4
All Assistant Titles*	4
All Technology Titles*	4
All Aide Titles*	4
Job Coach	4
Account Clerk	5
Sr. Account Clerk	5
Benefits Coordinator	5
Payroll Clerk	5
All Secretary Titles	5
Database Specialist	5
Purchasing Agent	5
Senior Bookkeeper	5

<sup>\*</sup>Refers to job classification titles in Article 5.1

- **5.5** Any employee whose job is reclassified by the Westchester County Civil Service office shall be compensated pursuant to the certified title within the salary structure contained herein.
- 5.6 Whenever it becomes necessary to create new titles of classifications within the District, applicable to this unit, salaries and grades for such title or classification shall be discussed with the proper CSEA representative before such title or classification receives final board approval.

- **5.7** The Association and the District shall establish a committee to formulate and implement a job evaluation process.
- **5.8** All employees covered by this Agreement who have more than one year of service shall be evaluated annually in writing. All annual evaluations shall be completed by May 15th each year.

#### ARTICLE 6 - Personal Illness

- 6.1 Eligible twelve (12) month employees shall be granted fourteen (14) days each school year for personal illness. Eligible ten (10) month employees shall be granted twelve (12) days each school year for personal illness.
- 6.2 It is the employee's responsibility under this policy to give reasonable advance notice of his/her absence to his/her building principal or other immediate supervisor. Reasonable notice shall be defined as before the start of the school day or if scheduled in advance then two days before the scheduled leave.
- 6.3 All eligible employees shall be permitted to accumulate unused personal illness days up to a maximum of 180 days. The parties acknowledge that eligible employees who have reached the maximum allotment of 180 accumulated personal illness days on June 30th of a particular year shall be granted an additional 14 (12-month employees) or 12 (10-month employees) personal illness days the following July 1st. Said additional days may only be used during the school year in which they are granted and any unused days that remain at the conclusion of the school year (over and above the maximum accumulation of 180 personal illness days) shall be lost.
- **6.4** In the event of absence beyond five (5) consecutive working days, the employee shall submit a doctor's certificate to the personnel office showing his or her fitness to return to work.
- **6.5** In the event an employee establishes a pattern of absence indicative of the abusive utilization of sick leave, the District shall issue a Notice of Warning which may require the verification of each subsequent illness with a letter from a qualified physician for a period of six months.
- **6.6** A Sick Leave Bank has been established between the Union and the District. Employees electing to participate in the Sick Leave Bank shall contribute one (1)

personal illness day, which the District will match. Employees will be asked when they are hired if they wish to participate Employees electing not to contribute a sick day will not receive time from the Sick Leave Bank.

A committee comprised of three (3) members appointed by the District and three (3) employees appointed by the CSEA Unit shall administer the Bank and shall act upon requests for withdrawals. Withdrawals from the Bank shall be determined by the Sick Bank Committee for those who have exhausted their sick leave and request additional sick leave time. No employee may withdraw more than thirty (30) days at any one time. The maximum benefit available per year to ten-month employees shall be a total of sixty (60) days. The maximum benefit available per year to twelve-month employees shall be a total of ninety (90) days.

An employee must be employed for one (1) year to be eligible to withdraw days. All of an employee's personal illness, family illness, personal business and vacation days must be exhausted before requesting time from the bank. All requests must be made in writing and supported by a medical certificate. The employee's letter should state the number of additional leave days he or she is requesting, explain the reason for not having any personal Sick leave time remaining and give an estimated date of return to work.

**6.7** At the discretion of the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the superintendent of schools, an employee may be granted sick leave above and beyond that to which he or she is entitled.

### ARTICLE 7 - Death or Illness in Family

- 7.1 For the purpose of attending to problems arising from death or illness in the family, the employee is credited with five (5) days each year accumulating to a limit of fifteen (15) days. Time lost for death or illness in the family is deducted from the accumulated number of days. It is the employee's responsibility under this policy to give reasonable advance notice to his/her building principal or other immediate supervisor.
- 7.2 Five (5) days are added to the total remaining days at the end of each school year until fifteen (15) days are reached. Thereafter, five (5) days are to be added to the unused days at the beginning of each school year, but the accumulated total cannot exceed fifteen (15) days. Upon request the Superintendent may waive this limit in the event that unusual circumstances exist.

**7.3** A request for absence under this article may be made directly to the Superintendent in unusual circumstances not involving family death or illness.

#### **ARTICLE 8** - Personal Business

8.1 Each employee shall be granted three (3) days per year for personal business. Said days may only be utilized for the reasons set forth in Article 8.2. The use of such days is subject to the prior approval of the building principal or superintendent. Employees who have completed three (3) consecutive years of employment with the District shall be permitted to carry over one (1) unused personal day each year for a maximum accumulation of four (4) personal business days.

Personal business days that are not used shall be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave.

**8.2** The policy governing absence due to personal reasons is intended to provide for absences due to urgent personal business that cannot be attended to outside of working hours.

#### These are:

- a. Transactions involving legal matters such as deeds, mortgages, property transfers.
- b. Such special religious activities occurring within the immediate family such as confirmations, first communions and weddings.
- c. Graduations of members within the immediate family.
- d. Accompanying members of the family to colleges or universities for the purpose of visitation or enrollment.
- e. To transport college students to or from college, or for attendance at college functions other than graduation.
- f. For the purpose of attending an employment interview or civil service exam.
- g. Religious observance.
- h. Marriage, attendance at funerals of persons not included in Article 7 of this contract, attendance at ceremonies, personal or family educational needs.
- i. Other unusual circumstances beyond personal control.
- j. One personal day may be used without cause.

Building principals have been delegated the authority to approve requests referenced above except for "h." The Administrative Supervisor must approve any

requests under Item "h."

**8.3** Unpaid Leaves of Absence: Employees with one (1) or more years of service shall be permitted to request an unpaid leave of absence for up to three (3) months. Approval of all requests shall be at the sole discretion of the Board of Education and the Board's decision shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

### ARTICLE 9 - Jury Duty

9.1 Subject to the requirements of law, employees shall be required to adjourn jury duty to a time when school is not in session. All requests for absence due to jury duty shall be subject to the approval of the employee's immediate supervisor and the Building Principal, where applicable; or when appropriate, the Assistant Superintendent for Business.

### ARTICLE 10 - Adjustments to Leave Day Accruals

Employees who have been absent from work on unpaid leave or on sick bank leave will have their paid leave time for the following school year reduced by the percentage of the school year that they have been absent on such leave, rounded to the nearest half-day.

**Example:** If a 12-month employee with five years of service receives sick bank benefits for 10% of a school year and is on unpaid leave for an additional 40% of that same school year, then the following school year he shall be granted 7 personal illness days instead of 14, 2.5 family illness days instead of 5, 1.5 personal business days instead of 3, and 7.5 days of vacation instead of 15.

### ARTICLE 11 - Labor Management Committee

Labor Management Meetings

The purpose of this Article shall be to provide a forum to discuss and attempt to resolve matters of mutual concern. Matters resolved pursuant to this Article shall be placed in writing in the form of memoranda or correspondence between the parties and executed by same.

Representatives of the Bedford School District shall meet with CSEA representatives at mutually agreed upon times to discuss matters of mutual concern. If desired by the other party, the party requesting the meeting shall submit a written agenda in advance of the meeting.

A department head or designated representative shall meet with CSEA representatives quarterly for the purpose of discussing and attempting to resolve matters of mutual concern, including matters concerning implementation and administration of this Agreement which are school or district-wide in nature. Written agenda shall be exchanged by the parties no less than five (5) days before the scheduled date of the meeting. At the time of the meeting additional matters for discussion may be placed on the agenda by mutual agreement. Nothing contained herein shall prevent a School or District head, or designated representative, and CSEA representatives from meeting more frequently or less frequently than provided herein upon mutual agreement.

The results of a labor/management meeting held pursuant to this Article shall not contravene any term or provision of this Agreement or exceed the authority of the management at the level at which the meeting occurs. It is recommended that understandings that result in a local agreement should include a date by which the local agreement is to sunset.

Representatives of the District and Regional/Statewide CSEA shall provide assistance to facilitate resolution of matters which are subject of discussion in local labor management meetings held under this Article and which remain unresolved.

### ARTICLE 12 - Disability Due to Maternity

12.1 Disabilities resulting from or contributed to by pregnancy and/or childbirth as well as the recovery therefrom shall be treated as any other disability with regard to the terms and conditions of employment contained in this agreement.

### ARTICLE 13 - Snow Days and Storm-Related Closings

13.1 Clerical employees, teacher aides, instructional assistants, safety monitors, technology department members and lab assistants will not be required to report to work on days when school has been closed due to snow and/or storm-related conditions.

- 13.2 Custodial employees required to report for snow removal on a snow day will receive, in addition to their regular salary, an additional vacation day for each full snow day worked. A snow day is a regular school day in which a snowfall caused the cancellation of classes for the entire day. When a partial snow day is worked, a partial vacation day may be given.
- 13.3 In case of a delayed opening, the employees noted in 13.1 are expected to report to work on the delayed schedule. If schools are required to close early due to emergency conditions, the positions noted in 13.1 will be dismissed one-half hour after student dismissal in that particular building. Custodial schedules will be established by the building head custodian.

## ARTICLE 14 - Half-Day, District-Wide Dismissal

On school days before holidays when a half-day, district-wide dismissal has been granted to students and teaching personnel, ten-month employees will be dismissed one-half hour after student dismissal. They will be compensated for a full work day. Twelve-month clerical personnel will be on summer hours.

### ARTICLE 15 - Holidays

- 15.1 Twelve-month employees are entitled to sixteen (16) holidays. The following holidays must be taken:
  - 1. July 4
  - 2. Labor Day
  - 3. Columbus Day
  - 4. Veterans Day
  - 5. Thanksgiving Day
  - 6. Day after Thanksgiving
  - 7. Christmas Eve
  - 8. Christmas

- 9. New Year's Eve
- 10. New Year's Day
- 11. Good Friday
- 12. Memorial Day
- 13. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
- 14. Presidents' Day
- 15. Juneteenth

It is understood that this will leave one unscheduled day which is to be decided upon by the committee referred to in Article 15.2.

15.2 A Contract Holiday Committee composed of representatives of the union and the district will convene after the adoption of the official school calendar to determine

- the actual days off the contract holidays will be celebrated.
- 15.3 If any holiday is lost to employees by the school calendar or by reason of falling on a weekend, it will be made up at a time mutually agreed upon by the school district and the CSEA.
- 15.4 Election Day will be an additional holiday only if it is a school holiday.
- 15.5 In years when Yom Kippur falls on a non-holiday weekday, 12-month employees will have that day off from work with no reduction in pay. This day is not subject to Article 15.3.

#### **ARTICLE 16** – Vacations

- 16.1 The following vacations apply to full-time twelve-month personnel:
  - a. An employee hired prior to October I shall be entitled to receive ten (10) days vacation after June 30 of his/her first year of employment. An employee hired after October 1 shall be entitled to receive one (1) vacation day for each month of employment from the date of hire through June 30 which shall be taken after June 30 of his/her first year of employment.
  - b. After completing one (1) year of service, ten (10) working days.
  - c. After completing five (5) years of service, fifteen (15) working days.
  - d. After completing ten (10) years of service, twenty (20) working days.
- 16.2 Time of vacation must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor and the building principal, where applicable; or when appropriate, the Assistant Superintendent for Business. Employees shall be required to give their administrative supervisor at least two weeks' notice for five (5) or more consecutive days of vacation. For less than five consecutive days of vacation, at least 48 hours' notice must be given to the administrative supervisor. All vacation days must be taken within the school fiscal year (July 1 June 30). Employees may not save days nor be paid for unused days. If, however, unusual circumstances exist which makes it impossible for an employee to use vacation days within the prescribed period of time, a request may be made to the Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, to allow for up to two (2) days to be carried over into the next fiscal year. In addition, the District agrees to carry over up to five (5) vacation days per year in the event that an employee's requests for vacation are denied.

16.3 In the event of a transfer to a 12-month position, any employment in a ten-month position of four (4) hours or more per day will be counted as full-time employment. One full school year of such full-time employment shall count as one year toward vacation allowance.

#### ARTICLE 17 - Clerical/Non-Instructional Work Schedule

#### 17.1 12-Month/35-Hour Clerical Workers

a. The following titles are considered to be 12-month/35-hour clerical workers: Account Clerk, Senior Account Clerk, Payroll Clerk, Benefits Assistant, Secretary to School Principal, Secretary to School Official, Senior Office Automated Systems (12 months), Personnel Assistant, Office Automated Systems (12 months), Database Specialist, Purchasing Agent, Senior Bookkeeper, Community Aide-Spanish-Speaking, Senior Payroll Clerk.

#### b. Work Week

 Regular School Year (Monday before Labor Day to June 30th, inclusive of Superintendent's Conference Days/Staff Development Days)

All staff shall be required to work thirty-five (35) hours per week, consisting of seven (7) hours per day, exclusive of one hour per day for a meal break. Elementary and Central Main Offices shall be open from 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. and employees may be scheduled to work at any time during this period. Middle and High School Main Offices shall be open from 7:15 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. and employees may be scheduled to work at any time during this time period.

2. Summer Hours (July 1st until the Monday before Labor Day, School Vacation Periods and School Holidays)

All staff shall be required to work thirty (30) hours per week, consisting of six (6) hours per day, exclusive of one hour per day for a meal break. The normal work day shall be 8:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M.

### 3. Overtime (Payrate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) during the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

#### c. Work Year

All staff shall be granted two (2) additional days off each year during the December holiday break to be determined at the same time as the unscheduled holiday following the adoption of the official school calendar.

#### 17.2 10-Month/35-Hour Clerical Workers

a. The following titles are considered to be 10-month/35-hour clerical workers:

Computer Lab Aide, Clerk/School Monitor, Office Assistant-Automated Systems (10-month), Senior Office Assistant-Automated Systems (10-month), and any other 10-month clerical position.

#### b. Work Week

All staff shall be required to work thirty-five (35) hours per week, consisting of seven (7) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break.

### c. Overtime (Pay rate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) during the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

- 17.3 Clerical employees shall never be expected to work alone in a building.
- 17.4 Meal Breaks
  - 17.4.1 Meal breaks may not be used for early dismissal; and
  - 17.4.2 Meal breaks must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- 17.5 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

### **ARTICLE 18** - Custodial Operations Workers

**18.1** a. The following titles are considered to be 12-month/40-hour custodial operations workers:

Custodian, Maintenance Mechanic, Grounds Mechanic and any other Operations Personnel whose contract stipulates a 12-month/40-hour work week.

- b. Work Week
  - 1. Regular School Year (These are days when school is in session in accordance with the district-approved calendar, inclusive of Superintendent's Conference Days/Staff Development Days).

Employees assigned to the day shift shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, exclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break. Employees assigned to the night shift shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break. The work week shall be Monday through Friday.

Up to four custodial, grounds, or maintenance positions created or vacated on or after July 1, 2012 may be assigned to a Tuesday-through-Saturday work week.

2. Summer Hours (These are the days when school is not in session in accordance with the district-approved calendar)

All staff shall be required to work day shift hours. The work week shall be forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break. During the summer months (July and August) the District shall have the discretion to create a 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. shift and to staff such shift with one (1) unit member in each building during that period.

3. Overtime (Pay rate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) during the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

Overtime shall be distributed in a fair and equitable basis on a rotating seniority basis by building, department, and job title. Employees will be eligible for overtime opportunities if their performance over the past six months has been satisfactory and if they are qualified for the particular assignment. An employee's performance will be deemed satisfactory for the purposes of this provision if he or she has received no written counseling memos or formal discipline within the past six months.

Employees who are under discipline may be considered for overtime based on the needs of the particular building and subject to the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee.

- 18.2 Head custodians shall be required to make one building check on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays with compensation. If another employee is assigned to make a building check, he/she shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime. If a building is open in order to accommodate a special event, the employee shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime.
- 18.3 Meal Breaks
  - 18.3.1 Meal breaks may not be used for early dismissal; and

- 18.3.2 Meals breaks must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- 18.3 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule, employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

### **ARTICLE 19**-Transportation Workers

19.1 a. The following titles are considered to be 12-month/40-hour transportation workers:

Dispatcher, Routing Supervisor

- b. Work Week
  - 1. Regular School Year (These are days when school is in session in accordance with the district-approved calendar, inclusive of Superintendent's Conference Days/Staff Development Days)

Employees assigned to the day shift shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, exclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break. Employees assigned to the night shift shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break. The work week shall be Monday through Friday.

2. Summer Hours (These are the days when school is not in session in accordance with the district-approved calendar)

All staff shall be required to work day shift hours. The work week shall be forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break: During the summer months (July and August) the District shall have the discretion to create a 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. shift and to staff such shift with one (1) unit member in each building during that period.

3. Overtime (Pay rate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) during the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

- 19.2 Overtime for Transportation Employees Work time required on Saturday, Sunday or holidays will be paid overtime with a guaranteed minimum of three hours. In case of a cancellation the three-hour minimum will hold.
- 19.3 Snow Days for Transportation Employees

Twelve-Month Transportation Employees are required to report to work at their regular check-in time and will receive that day's pay. The amount of work time required on a ·day the district closes due to inclement weather or other reason of emergency will be added to vacation time.

- 19.4 Meal breaks may not be used for early dismissal and must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- 19.5 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

### **ARTICLE 20** - Technical Specialists

- 20.1 12-Month/40-Hour Technical Specialists
  - a. The following titles are considered to be 12-month/40-hour technical specialists:

Network Specialist, Junior Network Specialist, Technical Assistant, Theatre Technical Assistant, Research Assistant and Television Assistant, Network Administrator

- b. Work Week
  - 1. Regular School Year (Monday before Labor Day to June 30th, inclusive of Superintendent's Conference Days/Staff Development Days)

All staff shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break.

2. Summer Hours (July 1<sup>st</sup> until the Monday before Labor Day, School Vacation Periods and School Holidays)

All staff shall be required to work thirty-five (35) hours per week, consisting of seven (7) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break.

3. Overtime (Pay rate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

- c. Work Year -All staff shall be granted two (2) additional days off each year during the December holiday break to be determined at the same time as the unscheduled holiday following the adoption of the official school calendar.
- 20.2 Meal breaks may not be used for early dismissal and must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- 20.3 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

### **ARTICLE 21** - Safety Monitors

- 21.1 10-Month/40-Hour Safety Monitors
  - a. Work Week

Regular School Year inclusive of Superintendent's Conference Days/Staff Development Days)

All staff shall be required to work forty (40) hours per week, consisting of eight (8) hours per day, inclusive of one-half hour per day for a meal break.

b. Overtime (Payrate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

- 21.2 Meal breaks may not be used for early dismissal and must be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- 21.3 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

# ARTICLE 22 - Ten-Month Employees Working Between 25 to 35 Hours Per Week

- 22.1 All teacher aides, instructional assistants, lab assistants, job coaches and 1-1 aides who work less than 35 hours per week, but 25 hours or more, shall be allowed one-half hour of unassigned time daily. This time may be used for coffee breaks and/or lunch. The specific time must be approved by the building administrator. This time may not be used for early dismissal. Employees who work less than 35 hours per week shall have their working hours established by the individual administrator.
- 22.2 Employees shall have their working hours established by the individual administrator.
- 22.3 Overtime (Pay rate = 1.5 times hourly rate)

Overtime shall be paid for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) during the employee's regular work week.

After an employee has received overtime pay during any five weeks in a school

year because sick time is counted as hours worked, sick time will no longer be counted as hours worked for that employee for the remainder of that school year for overtime purposes.

22.4 Office hours in the contract must be maintained. Management has the right to schedule employee hours within the times that offices are to be kept open.

### ARTICLE 23 - Out-of-Title Pay

- Any employee (with the exception of those set forth in the following paragraph) who is required by his/her supervisor to assume full responsibilities for five (5) consecutive work days in a position which falls within a classification with a higher rate of pay shall receive a five percent (5%) differential retroactive to the first day of work in the new classification.
- Custodians, mechanics, maintenance and grounds workers who are required by their supervisor to assume full responsibilities for five (5) consecutive work days in a position which falls within a higher classification shall receive the applicable differential for that position, as set forth in the salary schedule.

#### ARTICLE 24 - Personal Effects

24.1 The Board shall provide reimbursement in any amount reasonable under all circumstances for the repair or replacement of clothing or personal effects stolen, damaged, or destroyed during the course of and incidental to employment, provided the loss has not been caused by the negligence of the claimant. Personal effects do not include motor vehicles. However, in the case of either theft or vandalism of motor vehicles, the Board shall adopt appropriate measures to protect such property.

### **ARTICLE 25** - Contracting Out

**25.1** For the duration of this contract, present custodial employees shall not lose jobs due to program elimination or subcontracting of work to outside contractors.

#### **ARTICLE 26** - Personnel Files

- 26.1 Official employee files in the school and district office shall contain only material and information necessary to establish a progress record of an employee's service.
- Except for material submitted prior to employment, no material or information derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in the file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review the material. The employee shall acknowledge that he or she has read such material by affixing his or her signature on the actual copy to be filed, with the statement that such signature in no way indicates an agreement with the contents thereof.
- 26.3 The employee shall have the right to provide an answer or explanation for any material filed and his or her written and signed statement shall be attached to the file copy.
- Employees have the right, upon request, to review the contents of their personnel files except confidential references and to make copies of any documents in it. An employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the CSEA accompany him/her during such review. An administrator shall be present during an employee's review of his/her personnel file.

#### **ARTICLE 27** - Travel

27.1 Any employee required to travel in his or her own vehicle on district business shall be reimbursed at the rate set at the reorganization meeting which is annually conducted by the Board of Education during the month of July.

#### ARTICLE 28 - Tenure

Within the limits of the law, protection shall be granted under Section 75 of the Civil Service Law to all non-competitive and labor class employees upon completion of three (3) years of satisfactory service. The Agreement shall include employees who have already completed three (3) years of such satisfactory service.

### ARTICLE 29 - Seniority

- 29.1 For the purposes of determining seniority, the anniversary date of employment in the district shall be the determining factor.
- 29.2 Non-competitive and labor class employees will be afforded the same rights as competitive employees under Section 80 of the Civil Service Law.
  - a. The District shall have the discretion to reduce the work hours of a particular position (or positions) in a particular building (or buildings) by five (5) hours or less per week after consultation with the Union and the unit member involved.
  - b. In the event the hours for a particular position (or positions) in a particular building (or buildings) must be reduced by more than five (5) hours per week, the District shall consider seniority (building-wide) within the job classifications set forth in the salary schedules only under the following circumstances:
    - 1) Said reduction in hours results in a unit member falling below the twenty (20) hour threshold for eligibility for benefits; OR
    - 2) The affected unit member has four (4) or more years of service in the District.
  - c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all reductions in hours shall primarily be based upon the best interests of the school district.
  - d. Reductions in hours shall not be utilized for disciplinary reasons.
  - e. The parties acknowledge that in no event shall a unit member be permitted to "split" an assignment amongst two or more buildings as a result of a reduction in hours.
  - f. The parties further acknowledge that the District has the unilateral right to reduce the hours of a 1:1 aide without regard to seniority.

### **ARTICLE 30** - Payment Schedule

- The regular annual salary of twelve-month non-instructional employees shall be divided by 26 based on 12-month fulfillment of duties and paid in 26 payments July through June according to a payroll schedule set by the district each year.
- 30.2 For all twelve-month employees covered by this Agreement, the daily deduction rate for absence beyond the allotted days or for absence without prior approval is 1/260th of the annual salary rate.
- 30.3 All ten (10) month employees who work more than twenty (20) hours per week shall work the school calendar inclusive of all Superintendent Conference/Staff Development Days. At least one (1) of the Superintendent Conference/Staff Development Days shall be devoted to staff development.
- All ten-month employees who work more than twenty (20) hours per week will receive pay for 189 full days. This pay shall be in an annual contract amount arrived at in the following manner: 189 x hourly rate x hours per day. Instructional assistants and safety monitors will receive pay for 200 full days. This pay shall be in an annual contract amount arrived at in the following manner: 200 x hourly rate x hours per day. The contract amount shall be divided by 21 and paid in 21 payments between September and June.
- 30.5 For ten-month employees the daily deduction rate for absence beyond the allotted days for absence without prior approval is 1/189th (or 1/200th where applicable) of the annual salary rate.
- 30.6 The Board of Education, at its discretion, may pay salaries in excess of those provided at any step of the salary schedule to staff members who have performed in an outstanding manner.
- 30.7 Employees reclassified or promoted will be placed on the new salary schedule at a step which recognizes the additional duties and/or responsibilities, but not necessarily a lateral step movement. In no event shall an employee receive less than the amount of the next step on the current (old) salary schedule and will be placed on the step on the new salary schedule which is mathematically closest to that amount. (Persons on top step will receive the increment between that step and the next-highest step added to the top step of the old schedule and placed likewise on the new schedule).

- 30.8 Hourly employees shall be paid on the regular payroll as soon as possible after payroll sheets are received.
- 30.9 Overtime pay shall be included on the regular payroll as soon as possible after payroll sheets are received.
- 30.10 Unless otherwise negotiated, each employee shall advance annually to the next salary step until he or she reaches the maximum for that position. Salary increments shall occur on July I.
- **30.11** Salary notices for the ensuing school year will be sent to employees each September.
- 30.12 Upon termination of employment or death, all salaries, overtime and vacation credits shall be given to the employee or employee's estate. The District will pay an additional two months' salary to the estate of a unit member who dies while in paid service.

### **ARTICLE 31** - Physical Examination

- 31.1 All employees must receive a physical examination and a tuberculin test upon employment. Prescribed forms are filed by the examining physician with the Personnel Office.
- Employees shall receive the required physical exams at no cost, if performed by the school physician. Any employee may have the prescribed exam performed by his/her personal physician and shall be reimbursed, upon presentation of the completed forms in the amount of up to \$150.00.

### **ARTICLE 32** - Grievance Procedure

- A. Purpose The primary purpose of this procedure is to secure at the lowest level possible, equitable solutions to the claim of the aggrieved person or persons.
- B. Definitions Grievance shall mean any complaint by an employee or group of employees based on an alleged violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of the existing state laws, Board policies, administrative procedures and regulations or

this Agreement. The term "grievance" shall not apply to any matter as to which (1) method of review is prescribed by law, or by any rule or regulation of the State Commissioner of Education or (2) the Board of Education is without authority to act or (3) any aspect of the contract which is left to discretion of the Board. Any event giving rise to a grievance which occurs more than 30 days prior to the implementation of Stage 1, as contained in sub-article D of this article, shall not be deemed the subject of a grievance. All grievances based upon an alleged violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of the existing state laws, Board policies, administrative procedures and regulations shall be limited to Stage 3 of the Grievance Procedure. The Superintendent's decision(s) at Stage 3 shall be final and binding upon the parties. Furthermore, said decision(s) shall not be made in an arbitrary and capricious manner.

The term "days", except where otherwise specified, shall mean calendar days. "Supervisor" shall mean any person regardless of title who is assigned to exercise any level of supervisory responsibility over employees. "Division Head" shall mean a principal, director of a division (e.g., instruction, pupil personnel services), assistant to the superintendent, school business administrator.

C. Use of the Grievance Procedure - The right to use the established grievance procedure is guaranteed to all employees without coercion, discrimination or reprisal.

The aggrieved party may be represented at all stages of this procedure by a person of his or her own choosing except that he or she may not be represented by an employee organization other than the CSEA.

Failure by the aggrieved to initiate the required action in order to move, within the specified time periods as outlined herein, from stage to stage in the grievance procedure shall be considered to constitute an abandonment of the grievance.

#### D. Grievance Procedure

Stage 1 - The employee, with his or her grievance in writing, shall formally meet with his or her immediate supervisor and attempt to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement. The immediate supervisor is to schedule a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the grievance within three (3) working days of presentation. The immediate supervisor shall render a decision in writing within three (3) working days following the date of such a meeting.

Stage 2 – If the grievance is not resolved in Stage 1, the employee shall, within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision of the immediate supervisor, present his or

her appeal formally and in writing to the appropriate division head unless the division head rendered the decision in Stage 1, in which case the employee shall move immediately to Stage 3 of the grievance procedure. Before rendering a decision, the division head or his/her designee may require a formal hearing. A determination shall be made in written form within five (5) working days after the submission of final documents in the appeal unless a different time shall be established by the mutual agreement of the parties involved.

Stage 3 – If the grievance is not resolved in Stage 2, the employee shall, within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision from the division head, present his or her appeal formally and in writing to the Superintendent of Schools. Before rendering a decision, the Superintendent may require a formal hearing. A determination in written form shall be made by the Superintendent, or his designee, within five (5) working days after receipt of the final documents in the appeal unless a different time shall be established by the mutual agreement of the parties involved.

Stage 4 - A grievance which was not resolved at the level of the Superintendent under the grievance procedure may be submitted by the Association to an arbitrator for decision if it involves the application or interpretation of the Agreement.

A grievance may not be submitted to an arbitrator unless a decision has been rendered by the Superintendent under the grievance procedure, except in cases where, upon expiration of the five (5) working days time limit for decision, the aggrieved employee or the Association filed notice with the Superintendent of intention to submit the grievance to arbitration and no decision was issued by the Superintendent within twenty (20) working days after receipt of such notice.

The employee may proceed personally or through the Association or any other representative of his choice.

The proceeding may be initiated by filing with the Board and the American Arbitration Association a notice of arbitration. The notice shall be filed within ten (10) working days after receipt of the decision of the Superintendent under the grievance procedure or, where no decision has been issued in the circumstances described above, three (3) working days following the expiration of twenty (20) working days per period provided above. The notice shall include a brief statement setting forth precisely the issue to be decided by the arbitrator and the specific provision(s) of the agreement involved.

The American Arbitration Association shall appoint, subject to the mutual agreement

of the parties hereto, an arbitrator to serve in accordance with the procedures outlined herein.

The voluntary labor arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association shall apply to the proceeding insofar as they relate to the hearings and fees and expenses.

The arbitrator shall issue his or her decision not later than thirty (30) days from the date of closing of the hearings or, if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date of transmitting the final statements and proofs to the arbitrator. The decision shall be in writing and shall set forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issues submitted. The arbitrator shall limit his or her decision strictly to the application and interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement and he or she shall be without power or authority to make any decision:

- 1. Contrary to, or inconsistent with, modifying or varying in any way, the terms of the Agreement or of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.
- 2. Involving Board discretion of Board policy under the provisions of the Agreement under Board by-laws, or under applicable law, except that he or she may decide in a particular case that Board policy was disregarded or that its attempted application under any term of this Agreement was so discriminatory, arbitrary, or capricious as to constitute an abuse of discretion.
- 3. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Board under its by-laws, applicable law, and rules and regulations having the force and effect of law.

The decision of the arbitrator, if made in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, will be accepted as final by the parties to the dispute and both will abide by it.

The arbitrator may recommend an appropriate remedy when he or she finds a violation of this Agreement.

The arbitrator's fee will be shared equally by the parties to the dispute.

The Board agrees that it will apply to all substantially similar situations the decision of an arbitrator sustaining a grievance and the Association agrees that it will not bring or continue, and that it will not represent any employee in any grievance which is substantially similar to a grievance denied by the decision of an arbitrator.

E. General Provisions as to Grievances and Binding Arbitration - The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Board to take the action complained of, subject, however, to the final decision on the grievance. Nothing contained in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit the Association to present or process a grievance not involving the application or interpretation of the term of this Agreement on behalf of any employee without his or her consent. The parties acknowledge that said grievances shall be limited to Stage 3 of the Grievance Procedure.

Nothing contained in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any individual employee from presenting and processing a grievance through the procedures provided in this Article.

Nothing contained in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to deny to any employee his or her rights under Section 15 of the New York Civil Rights Law or under the State Education Law or under applicable Civil Service Laws and Regulations.

Whenever a grievance is filed by an employee personally or through a representative which would involve the application or interpretation of the terms of this Agreement, notice shall be given to the Association by the employee filing the grievance and the Association will be given the opportunity to be present, state its views at all stages of the grievance and arbitration procedures. When a grievance reaches Stage 3 or beyond, the Board shall notify the Association of all such proceedings.

#### **ARTICLE 33** - Health Insurance

Benefits provided to employees shall be in accordance with the Bedford Health Plan effective oh June 30, 2012. Upon request, employees shall be entitled to a copy of the Bedford Health Plan.

Employees hired prior to July 1, 1992 shall be eligible for this benefit during retirement if they have been employed in the district for 10 years <u>AND</u>

1) Are a member of the NYS Employees Retirement System; OR

2) Satisfy the eligibility requirements of the NYS Employees' Retirement System which states you must reach the age of 55 or older and have five or more years of credited member service.

Employees hired on or after July 1, 1992 shall be eligible for this benefit during retirement if they have been employed by the district for 12 years and retire from the NYS Employees Retirement System.

Employees shall be required to pay the following premium contributions for health insurance coverage (individual or family) for the years indicated:

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2012: 15.0%

For employees hired before July 1,2012:

Effective July 1, 2017: 12.0% Effective July 1, 2018: 13.0% Effective July 1, 2019: 13.5% Effective July 1, 2020: 14.0%

Such contributions shall not be applicable upon a unit member's retirement in accordance with the eligibility requirements of the New York State Employees' Retirement System, provided that the employee was hired by the District before July 1, 2012. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 who retire in accordance with the eligibility requirements of the New York State Employees' Retirement System will be required to contribute the same percentage of the premium as they contributed immediately before their retirement until they become eligible for Medicare, at which point their contributions will cease.

CSEA health insurance benefit levels shall remain the same as they were in 2006-07, unless otherwise modified by the parties' memorandum of agreement. A vision benefit has been added effective July 1, 2018.

- The District reserves the right to change health insurance carriers provided the benefits of the proposed plan are equivalent to those which were provided under the Bedford Health Plan effective on June 30, 2012. The union will be given thirty (30) days' notice of such change in order to review proposed new benefits.
- 33.3 Subject to Article 33.4(2), new employees will be eligible for health insurance benefits within thirty (30) days of hire.

#### 33.4 Enforcement of Open Enrollment Period:

- The District shall offer two (2) open enrollment periods in which employees may make enrollment changes. These open enrollment periods will be the entire month of May, for changes that will become effective July 1", and the entire month of November, for changes that will become effective January 1". Any changes in enrollment which deviate from the open enrollment periods set forth above shall be made at the sole discretion of the District. Employees who experience a "Change of Status" shall be permitted to make enrollment changes at any time, subject to the rules of the Bedford Health Plan. A "Change of Status" shall include: birth, marriage, adoption or placement for adoption, divorce, legal separation, termination of employment, death, reduction in hours, moving out of an HMO service area, or a dependent no longer eligible due to age limitations.
- 2) Newly hired eligible employees shall be given an opportunity to enroll in the District's health insurance plan effective with the first day of the month following the initial date of hire by first submitting any and all information necessary for enrollment to the District. In the event an employee fails to submit said information to the District within thirty (30) days of initial date of hire, the employee shall be enrolled effective with the first day of the month following the date of submission of said information to the District (up to sixty (60) days after the initial date of hire). In the event an employee fails to submit said information within sixty (60) days of initial date of hire said employee shall only be permitted to enroll in the District's health insurance plan during the open enrollment periods set forth in sub-paragraph (1) above.

#### **33.5** Enrollment of Domestic Partner:

Eligible non-marital same sex domestic partners shall be covered in accordance with the description of coverage and affidavit attached hereto as Appendix "B." In light of the availability of same-sex marriage, this provision will expire on June 30, 2019.

- Upon demand of the District, this Agreement may be reopened at any time for the purposes of negotiations concerning the following:
  - a. The health care plan provided to unit members;
  - b. Benefit levels;

- c. Increases to deductions and co-payments; and
- d. Any other health care plan modification, including, but not limited to, the implementation of a coordination of benefits/spousal rule.
- 33.7 The District shall provide health insurance coverage at no cost to a surviving spouse or dependent of a unit member who dies during active employment. For those unit members who have worked for the District for more than ten (10) years, coverage will be provided for the three (3) years next following the unit member's death. For those unit members who have worked for the District for ten (10) years or less, coverage will be provided for the two (2) years next following the unit member's death. Following completion of the coverage period, the spouse or eligible dependents of said individual may elect to continue to participate in the District's health care plan. Premiums will be paid by those electing to participate at the group rate in effect for the District health care plan.

#### **ARTICLE 34** - Life Insurance

34.1 The Board shall provide employees who work twenty (20) hours a week or more and who qualify for group insurance, the option of participation in a group insurance policy with a principal amount to the nearest \$100 of the employees' annual salary.

# ARTICLE 35 - Disability Insurance

35.1 The Board shall provide disability insurance for all employees. The Board shall assume the full cost of the premium.

### **ARTICLE 36** - Retirement

- 36.1 Non-instructional employees who qualify for membership in the NYS Employees' Retirement System are subject to one of the following:
  - a. Employees who became members prior to July 1, 1976 shall be covered by the plan described in Section 75-I of the NYS Statutes relating to the New York State Retirement Plan.
  - b. Employees who became members on or after July 1, 1976 shall be covered by

the plan described in Article 14 of the NYS Statutes relating to the NYS Retirement Plan. This plan is known as the Coordinate-Escalator Retirement Plan.

- 36.2 Employees who are covered by Section 75-I of the NYS Employees Retirement System shall be provided with life insurance, by the district, for a period of two years from the date of retirement from the District. The amount of the insurance shall be equal to 62% of his or her average annual salary earned during the final three (3) years of employment, payable to the retiree's designated beneficiary.
- 36.3. The District will adhere to Section 41-j of the NYS Employees Retirement System policies, which grants up to 165 days of credit toward retirement of unused sick leave. The District agrees to pay for any additional unused sick leave days up to 180 (total number of possible unused sick leave days to be paid for, therefore, is fifteen [15]).

### ARTICLE 37 - Retirement Award

- 37.1 Employees who are members of the NYS Employees' Retirement System, or satisfy those requirements related to the appropriate tier level applicable to the time of retirement, are eligible for retirement awards under the following conditions:
  - a. Any employee who has served at least ten (10) years but less than twenty (20) years in the district shall receive a lump sum payment equivalent to three quarters of one percent (.75%) of his or her final year's salary for each year he or she has served as an employee of the district.
  - b. Any employee who has served twenty (20) or more years in the district shall receive a lump sum payment equivalent to one and one quarter percent (1.25%) of his or her final year's salary for each year he or she has served as an employee of the district.
  - c. Employees shall be required to provide the District with written notice of their intent to retire. Employees providing the District with written notice of their intent to retire five (5) or more months in advance of their effective date of retirement, shall be eligible to receive the award on or before August 15<sup>th</sup> of the school year following the year of retirement. Employees who fail to provide the District with at least five (5) months' written notice of their intent to retire shall be eligible to receive the award on or before December

31st of the school year following the year of retirement.

- d. Such payments shall be in addition to the employee's regular salary.
- e. The retirement award set forth herein is not available to employees hired after November 13, 1998.

### ARTICLE 38 - Longevity

#### 38.1

- a. The sum of \$1,000 shall be paid to any twelve-month employee, and the sum of \$900 to any ten-month employee after ten (10) successive years of service in the district.
- b. The sum of \$1,200 shall be paid to any twelve-month employee, and the sum of \$1;050 to any ten-month employee after seventeen (17) successive years of service in the district.
- c. The sum of \$1,300 shall be paid to any twelve-month employee, and the sum of \$1,100 to any ten-month employee after twenty-two (22) successive years of service in the district.
- 38.2 Longevity payments shall be apportioned through the year and paid pursuant to the employee regularly scheduled payment schedule.
- 38.3 For the purposes of determining longevity any employment in a ten-month position of four (4) hours or more per day will be counted as full-time employment. One full school year in such employment shall count as one year for longevity purposes.

### **ARTICLE 39** - Uniforms

39.1 Five (5) uniforms shall be provided each year by the district to each custodial employee covered by this Agreement. The appropriate uniform shall be worn by each employee during regular working hours. Maintenance of each uniform is the responsibility of the employee.

#### **ARTICLE 40** - Dental Insurance

40.1 The District shall provide dental coverage to each eligible unit member through the CSEA Employee Benefit Fund (Equinox). Accordingly, the District shall be required to contribute the following amounts, for each eligible employee, for each of the school years indicated, for said dental coverage:

Beginning 7/1/21: \$150.09 per month
Beginning 7/1/22: \$160.60 per month
Beginning 7/1/23: \$162.21 per month
Beginning 7/1/24: \$163.83 per month

In lieu of paying the above contributions to the Equinox plan, the District reserves the right to change dental insurance carriers or to self-insure, provided the benefits of the proposed plan are equivalent to those that were provided under the Equinox plan effective on July 1, 2009.

The union will be given ninety (90) days' notice of such change in order to review the proposed benefits.

Retirees may receive dental coverage at no cost to the District.

# **ARTICLE 41** - Continuity of Employment

- Each member of the bargaining unit will be expected to return to work with the Board after each vacation period unless such member has received a letter or statement in writing informing him or her that his or her services have been terminated.
- 41.2 Layoffs due to the decision of the Board of Education to reduce staff may be effectuated after thirty (30) days' notice to the president of the Association.

#### **ARTICLE 42** - General Provisions

42.1 Effect of Contract - This Agreement constitutes the full and complete Agreement of the parties and may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from or modified only through the mutual consent of the parties in a written, signed amendment to this Agreement. Before the Board adopts a change in policy which affects salaries,

hours, or other conditions of employment of non-instructional employees, which is not covered by the terms of this Agreement and which was not a subject matter of negotiation between the parties in the formation of this Agreement, the Board will notify the Association in writing of the change that it is proposing. The Association shall have the right within five (5) calendar days after receipt of such notice, to advise the Board of its desire to discuss and review such proposed change. In such event the Board shall not take final action on any such proposed change until it has consulted with the Association as to its view as to such proposal and given good faith consideration thereto.

- 42.2 All terms and conditions of employment concerning subjects that have been designated by the Public Employment Relations Board as mandatory subjects of collective bargaining shall remain in full force and effect during the life of this agreement.
- 42.3 Agreement Supersedes This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. The provisions of this Agreement shall be incorporated into and considered part of the established policies of the Board.
- 42.4 Individual Agreement Any individual arrangement, agreement or contract between the Board and an individual non-instructional employee heretofore executed shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any individual arrangement, agreement, or contract hereafter executed shall be expressly made subject to and consistent with the terms of this or subsequent Agreements to be executed by the parties. If an individual arrangement, agreement or contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.
- 42.5 Conformity to Law Saving Clause If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any non-instructional employee or group of non-instructional employees shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- 42.6 The District shall ensure that all unit members have electronic access to this Agreement.

### **ARTICLE 43** - No Strike Clause

CSEA - Bedford Unit shall not engage in a strike, nor cause, instigate, encourage or condone a strike.

CSEA - Bedford Unit shall exert its best efforts to prevent and terminate any strike. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the rights, remedies or duties of the Board or the rights, remedies, or duties of CSEA -Bedford Unit or employees under State Jaw.

### **ARTICLE 44** - Duration of Agreement

This Agreement shall be effective for a period commencing July 1, 2021 and continuing until June 30, 2024.

### ARTICLE 45 - Changes in Compensation

- 45.1 a. Effective January 1, 2022, all current bargaining unit members who were members of the unit as of July 1, 2021, shall be moved up one step on the applicable salary schedule. Unit members currently on Step 11 (current top step) shall receive a one-time payment of \$750 and shall move to the new Step 12 which will be 2.0% over the current Step 11.
  - b. Effective July 1, 2022, a new salary schedule will be put into effect. Such salary schedule will eliminate old Step 1. All other Steps will be renumbered from 1-11. The salary schedule shall be increased by 1.85% for new steps 1-10 and new Step 11 shall be increased by \$750 and then increased by 1.85%. <sup>1</sup>
  - c. Effective July 1, 2023, all steps on the salary schedule shall be increased by 1.85%.
- 45.2 Special Education Teacher Aides who are assigned to work in specifically designated "Special Needs" programs shall receive a 5% salary differential only

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Employees shall be placed on the new salary schedule based on their step as of June 30, 2022. For example, an individual on Step 1 of the 2021 – 2022 salary schedule shall be placed on Step 1 of the new salary schedule effective July 1, 2022. This shall have the effect of a one-step move. Effective July 1, 2023, step movement shall be reflected on the actual steps on the new step schedule.

while they are working in said designated program. Effective July 1, 2019, the differential shall be 5% of salary or \$2500, whichever is greater, and shall apply to Instructional Assistants as well as Teacher Aides. This differential shall apply to Special Education Teacher Aides and Instructional Assistants who deal most of their time with children who are likely to be violent and/or are likely to need frequent and significant help with toileting. A Labor-members selected by the Superintendent of Schools and two (2) members selected by the Union President. Said committee shall meet each year to determine which programs qualify for the "Special Needs" salary differential. Said determination shall be based upon the additional job responsibilities that are required to assist students enrolled in the "Special Needs Program." In the event the Committee is unable to render a determination, the Assistant Superintendent for Special Education shall have the sole discretion to determine which programs qualify for the "Special Needs" salary differential. The Assistant Superintendent's determination shall be final and binding and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure; however, the Assistant Superintendent shall be required to provide the Union President with the basis for the determination(s).

45.3 10-month Clerical employees' salaries shall be determined by prorating the applicable 12- month Clerical salary in the following manner:

(12-month Clerical salary) divided by 1820 hours X (Number of hours worked per day) X (Number of days for which the employee receives pay as per Article 30.4)

45.4 Effective July 1, 2019, when 10-month unit members are hired to perform summer custodial work, they will be paid at the Custodial Worker Step 2 hourly rate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective representatives August 26, 2022.

Dr. Robert Glass

Superintendent of Schools

Bedford Central School District

Maria Wiltse, President

Bedford Central School District Unit

Westchester Local 860 of the CSEA, Inc.

Vincent Castaldo, Labor Relations Specialist

Civil Service Employees Association

# Salary Schedules 10-Month Clerical

				2021-22			
	Lavel	Level	Lavel	teval in	Level	Level	Lavel
	OAAS-189	SROF189	OAAS-200	CK/MONIT	JOB COAC	SAFETY-M	TRANSIT
1 19	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Step							
V.I	26,636	31,102	28,186	26,619	26,619	30,384	73,771
i.	28,559	33,011	30,222	28,564	28,564	32,192	76,172
	30,470	34,978	32,243	30,495	30,495	34,080	78,646
4	32,389	36,921	34,274	32,374	32,374	35,776	81,204
	35,145	38,853	37,190	35,112	35,112	37,680	83,843
	36,478	40,966	38,602	36,475	36,475	40,896	86,568
7.	38,483	43,220	40,723	38,526	38,526	44,144	89,379
8	39,060	43,868	41,334	39,104	39,104	44,806	90,720
- 6	39,646	44,526	41,954	39,690	39,690	45,478	92,080
10	40,241	45,194	42,583	40,286	40,286	46,160	93,461
	40,845	45,872	43,222	40,890	40,890	46,852	94,863
14	41,662	46,789	44,086	41,708	41,708	47,789	96,760

				2022-23			
	Level	Lavel	Level	Level	Level	Level	Lavel
	OAAS-189	SROF189	OAAS-200	CK/MONIT	JOB COAC	SAFETY-M	TRANSIT
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step							
717	29,087	33,622	30,781	29,092	29,092	32,788	77,581
	31,034	35,625	32,839	31,059	31,059	34,710	80,101
	32,988	37,604	34,908	32,973	32,973	36,438	82,706
4	35,795	39,572	37,878	35,762	35,762	38,377	85,394
5	37,153	41,724	39,316	37,150	37,150	41,653	88,170
	39,195	44,020	41,476	39,239	39,239	44,961	91,033
	39,783	44,680	42,099	39,827	39,827	45,635	92,398
8	40,379	45,350	42,730	40,424	40,424	46,319	93,784
7	40,985	46,030	43,371	41,031	41,031	47,014	95,190
10	41,601	46,721	44,022	41,646	41,646	47,719	96,618
MIEL	43,197	48,419	45,666	43,243	43,243	49,437	99,314

10-Month Clerical

				2023-24			
	Level	Level	Lavel	Lavel	Level	Lavel	Level
	OAAS-189	SROF189	OAAS-200	CK/MONIT	JOB COAC	SAFETY-M	TRANSIT
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Staps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step							
	29,625	34,244	31,350	29,630	29,630	33,395	79,016
	31,608	36,284	33,447	31,634	31,634	35,352	81,583
	33,598	38,300	35,554	33,583	33,583	37,112	84,236
4	36,457	40,304	38,579	36,424	36,424	39,087	86,974
4	37,840	42,496	40,043	37,837	37,837	42,424	89,801
	39,920	44,834	42,243	39,965	39,965	45,793	92,717
	40,519	45,507	42,878	40,564	40,564	46,479	94,107
- 4	41,126	46,189	43,521	41,172	41,172	47,176	95,519
	41,743	46,882	44,173	41,790	41,790	47,884	96,951
10	42,371	47,585	44,836	42,416	42,416	48,602	98,405
11	43,996	49,315	46,511	44,043	44,043	50,352	101,151

10-Month IA

				2021-22				
	Level	Lave	Leval	Level	nevel	Level	Level	Level
-	I.A-6.0	TECHA-6	1.A-6.25	1.A-6.5	I.A-6.55	I.A-6.75	I.A-7.0	TECHA-7
. 198	# Steps	# Stops	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
11 2	28,080	28,080	29,250	30,420	30,654	31,590	32,760	32,760
2	31,008	31,008	32,300	33,592	33,850	34,884	36,176	36,176
	33,288	33,288	34,675	36,062	36,339	37,449	38,836	38,836
4	36,144	36,144	37,650	39,156	39,457	40,662	42,168	42,168
3	38,148	38,148	39,738	41,327	41,645	42,917	44,506	44,506
- 6	41,100	41,100	42,813	44,525	44,868	46,238	47,950	47,950
	42,612	42,612	44,388	46,163	46,518	47,939	49,714	49,714
- 8	43,251	43,251	45,054	46,855	47,216	48,658	50,460	50,460
9	43,900	43,900	45,730	47,558	47,924	49,388	51,217	51,217
10	44,559	44,559	46,416	48,271	48,643	50,129	51,985	51,985
11	45,227	45,227	47,112	48,995	49,373	50,881	52,765	52,765
	46,132	46,132	48,054	49,975	50,360	51,899	53,820	53,820

				2022-23				11
	Level	Lavel	Level	Level	Level	Lavel	Level	Level
	I.A-6.0	TECHA-6	I.A-6.25	I.A-6.5	I.A-6.55	I.A-6.75	I.A-7.0	TECHA-7
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step								
200	31,582	31,582	32,898	34,213	34,476	35,529	36,845	36,845
ğ.	33,904	33,904	35,316	36,729	37,011	38,142	39,554	39,554
	36,813	36,813	38,347	39,880	40,187	41,414	42,948	42,948
1/4	38,854	38,854	40,473	42,092	42,415	43,711	45,329	45,329
	41,860	41,860	43,605	45,349	45,698	47,093	48,837	48,837
	43,400	43,400	45,209	47,017	47,379	48,826	50,634	50,634
7	44,051	44,051	45,887	47,722	48,089	49,558	51,394	51,394
3	44,712	44,712	46,576	48,438	48,811	50,302	52,165	52,165
	45,383	45,383	47,275	49,164	49,543	51,056	52,947	52,947
3 10	46,064	46,064	47,984	49,901	50,286	51,822	53,741	53,741
111	47,749	47,749	49,707	51,663	52,056	53,623	55,580	55,580

### 10-Month IA

				2020 2 1				
	Lavel	Level	Level	Level	Lavel	Layva	Level	Level
	I.A-6.0	TECHA-6	I.A-6.25	1.A-6.5	I.A-6.55	I.A-6.75	I.A-7.0	TECHA-7
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	#Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step								
A VIE	32,166	32,166	33,507	34,846	35,114	36,186	37,527	37,527
	34,531	34,531	35,969	37,408	37,696	38,848	40,286	40,286
3.	37,494	37,494	39,056	40,618	40,930	42,180	43,743	43,743
4	39,573	39,573	41,222	42,871	43,200	44,520	46,168	46,168
5	42,634	42,634	44,412	46,188	46,543	47,964	49,740	49,740
-	44,203	44,203	46,045	47,887	48,256	49,729	51,571	51,571
1	44,866	44,866	46,736	48,605	48,979	50,475	52,345	52,345
8	45,539	45,539	47,438	49,334	49,714	51,233	53,130	53,130
19	46,223	46,223	48,150	50,074	50,460	52,001	53,927	53,927
10	46,916	46,916	48,872	50,824	51,216	52,781	54,735	54,735
11	48,632	48,632	50,627	52,619	53,019	54,615	56,608	56,608

# 10-Month Aides

2021-22

	Level	kevei	Level	Leve)	Lavai	Level	Lavel	Lavel	Level	Lavel
	AID-6.0	AID-6.2	AID-6.25	AID-6.5	AID-6.6	AID-6.75	AID-6.8	AID-7.0	COMP AID	COMNTY AID
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Staps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	W Steps
	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Step										
	17,214	17,788	17,931	18,649	18,936	19,366	19,509	20,083	25,534	32,760
	18,790	19,417	19,573	20,356	20,669	21,139	21,296	21,922	28,048	36,176
	20,378	21,057	21,227	22,076	22,416	22,925	23,095	23,774	30,231	38,836
4	22,805	23,565	23,755	24,705	25,085	25,655	25,845	26,606	33,273	42,168
\$	25,163	26,002	26,212	27,260	27,680	28,309	28,519	29,357	35,708	44,506
	27,465	28,381	28,610	29,754	30,212	30,899	31,128	32,043	38,698	47,950
	28,679	29,635	29,874	31,069	31,547	32,264	32,503	33,459	40,219	49,714
	29,109	30,080	30,322	31,535	32,020	32,748	32,991	33,961	40,822	50,460
	29,546	30,531	30,777	32,008	32,501	33,239	33,486	34,470	41,435	51,217
	29,989	30,989	31,239	32,488	32,989	33,738	33,988	34,987	42,057	51,985
11	30,439	31,454	31,708	32,975	33,484	34,244	34,498	35,512	42,688	52,765
12	31,048	32,083	32,342	33,635	34,154	34,929	35,188	36,222	43,542	53,820

2022-23

	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Lovel	Level	Level
	AID-6.0	AID-6.2	AID-6.25	AID-6.5	AID-6.6	AID-6.75	AID-6.8	AID-7.0	COMP AID	COMNTY AID
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step										
Calle .	19,138	19,776	19,935	20,733	21,051	21,530	21,690	22,328	28,567	36,845
2	20,755	21,447	21,620	22,484	22,831	23,349	23,522	24,214	30,790	39,554
	23,227	24,001	24,194	25,162	25,549	26,130	26,323	27,098	33,889	42,948
	25,629	26,483	26,697	27,764	28,192	28,833	29,047	29,900	36,369	45,329
	27,973	28,906	29,139	30,304	30,771	31,471	31,704	32,636	39,414	48,837
	29,210	30,183	30,427	31,644	32,131	32,861	33,104	34,078	40,963	50,634
	29,648	30,636	30,883	32,118	32,612	33,354	33,601	34,589	41,577	51,394
	30,093	31,096	31,346	32,600	33,102	33,854	34,105	35,108	42,202	52,165
	30,544	31,562	31,817	33,089	33,599	34,362	34,617	35,634	42,835	52,947
	31,002	32,036	32,295	33,585	34,103	34,878	35,136	36,169	43,478	53,741
-11	32,386	33,440	33,704	35,021	35,549	36,339	36,603	37,656	45,111	55,580

## 10-Month Aides

2023-24

	Level	Level	Lavel	Level	Leyel	Lavel	Level	Levei	Lavel	Level
	AID-6.0	AID-6.2	AID-6.25	AID-6.5	AID-6.6	AID-6.75	AID-6.8	AID-7.0	COMP AID	COMNTY AID
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	#Steps	# Staps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
Step										
	19,492	20,142	20,304	21,117	21,440	21,928	22,091	22,741	29,095	37,527
	21,139	21,844	22,020	22,900	23,253	23,781	23,957	24,662	31,360	40,286
	23,657	24,445	24,642	25,627	26,022	26,613	26,810	27,599	34,516	43,743
4	26,103	26,973	27,191	28,278	28,714	29,366	29,584	30,453	37,042	46,168
	28,491	29,441	29,678	30,865	31,340	32,053	32,291	33,240	40,143	49,740
	29,750	30,741	30,990	32,229	32,725	33,469	33,716	34,708	41,721	51,571
	30,196	31,203	31,454	32,712	33,215	33,971	34,223	35,229	42,346	52,345
	30,650	31,671	31,926	33,203	33,714	34,480	34,736	35,757	42,983	53,130
	31,109	32,146	32,406	33,701	34,221	34,998	35,257	36,293	43,627	53,927
	31,576	32,629	32,892	34,206	34,734	35,523	35,786	36,838	44,282	54,735
11	32,985	34,059	34,328	35,669	36,207	37,011	37,280	38,353	45,946	56,608

# Salary Schedules 12-Month Clerical

			20	021-22			
	Level	Lavel	Level	Layes	lavel	Level	Lavel
	ACCTCLK	COMM AID	OAAS	PAYROLL	PURCHASE	SR BOOKK	SRPAYROL
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
steps	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
1	48,704	42,588	36,642	48,704	71,349	71,349	54,548
2	51,442	47,029	39,288	51,442	74,322	74,322	57,615
3	54,169	50,487	41,916	54,169	77,294	77,294	60,669
4	56,903	54,818	44,556	56,903	80,268	80,268	63,731
5	59,632	57,858	48,347	59,632	83,241	83,241	66,788
6	62,528	62,335	50,182	62,528	86,214	86,214	70,031
7	65,972	64,628	52,940	65,972	89,188	89,188	73,889
8	66,962	65,597	53,734	66,962	90,526	90,526	74,997
9	67,966	66,581	54,540	67,966	91,884	91,884	76,122
10	68,985	67,580	55,358	68,985	93,262	93,262	77,264
11	70,020	68,594	56,188	70,020	94,661	94,661	78,423
12	71,420	69,966	57,312	71,420	96,554	96,554	79,99:

			20	022-23			
	Level	Leve	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level
	ACCTCLK	COMM AID	OAAS	PAYROLL	PURCHASE	SR BOOKK	SRPAYROL
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps:	# Steps	# Steps
steps	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
1	52,394	47,899	40,015	52,394	75,697	75,697	58,681
2	55,171	51,421	42,691	55,171	78,724	78,724	61,791
3	57,956	55,832	45,380	57,956	81,753	81,753	64,910
4	60,735	58,928	49,241	60,735	84,781	84,781	68,024
5	63,685	63,488	51,110	63,685	87,809	87,809	71,327
6	67,192	65,824	53,919	67,192	90,838	90,838	75,256
7	68,201	66,811	54,728	68,201	92,201	92,201	76,384
8	69,223	67,813	55,549	69,223	93,584	93,584	77,530
9	70,261	68,830	56,382	70,261	94,987	94,987	78,693
10	71,315	69,863	57,227	71,315	96,412	96,412	79,874
11	73,506	72,024	59,136	73,506	99,104	99,104	82,235

12-Month Clerical

	2023-24												
	Lavel	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level						
	ACCTCLK	COMM AID	OAAS	PAYROLL	PURCHASE	SR BOOKK	SRPAY/ SRACCTCLK						
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps						
steps	11	11	11	11	11	11	11						
1	53,363	48,785	40,755	53,363	77,097	77,097	59,767						
2	56,192	52,372	43,481	56,192	80,180	80,180	62,934						
3	59,028	56,865	46,220	59,028	83,265	83,265	66,111						
4	61,859	60,018	50,152	61,859	86,349	86,349	69,282						
5	64,863	64,663	52,056	64,863	89,433	89,433	72,647						
6	68,435	67,042	54,917	68,435	92,519	92,519	76,648						
7	69,463	68,047	55,740	69,463	93,907	93,907	77,797						
8	70,504	69,068	56, <b>5</b> 77	70,504	95,315	95,315	78.964						
9	71,561	70,103	57,425	71,561	96,744	96,744	80,149						
10	72,634	71,155	58,286	72,634	98,196	98,196	81,352						
11	74,866	73,356	60,230	74,866	100,937	100,937	83,756						

12-Month Secretarial

12 6	11 6	10 6	9 6	8	7 6	6	5	4	ω σ	2 4	1 4	steps		-	S		
69,581	68,217	67,209	66,216	65,237	64,273	60,917	57,508	55,318	52,618	49,902	47,207		12	# Steps	SECRET	18/81	
64,367	63,105	62,172	61,253	60,348	59,456	56,355	53,449	50,791	48,118	45,412	42,786		12	# Steps	SROFAUTO	Level	7077 77
69,581	68,217	67,209	66,216	65,237	64,273	60,917	57,508	55,318	52,618	49,902	47,207		12	# Steps	DISTREGnew	(eve)	
11	10	9	∞	7	6	5	4	ω	2	<b>1</b>		steps					
71,632	69,479	68,452	67,441	66,444	65,462	62,044	58,572	56,341	53,591	50,825			11	# Steps	SECRET	favel	
66,322	64,272	63,322	62,386	61,464	60,556	57,398	54,438	51,731	49,008	46,252			11	# Steps	SROFAUTO	Level	
71,632	69,479	68,452	67,441	66,444	65,462	62,044	58,572	56,341	53,591	50,825			11	# Steps	DISTREGnew	Level	
11	10	9	00	7	6	5	4	3	2	P		steps					
72,957	70,764	69,718	68,689	67,673	66,673	63,192	59,656	57,383	54,582	51,765			11	# Steps	SECRET	[gwel	
67,549	65,461	64,493	63,540	62,601	61,676	58,460	55,445	52,688	49,915	47,108			11	# Steps	SROFAUTO	Texas.	
72,957	70,764	69,718	68,689	67,673	66,673	63,192	59,656	57,383	54,582	51,765			11	Al Steps	DISTREGNEW	Level	

### 12-Month Custodian

### 2021-22

				-011 -1			
	Level	U.J. 2 (1)	and who will be not	Level			Level
	10% night	10% Maint Mech	10% Grds Mechanic	16% Head custodian	16% Maint Foreman	16% Grounds Foremen	CUST
	# Staps			# Steps	United the Control of the Control		. W Stept
	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
eps				U			
1	43,435	43,435	43,435	45,804	45,804	45,804	39,486
2	46,077	46,077	46,077	48,590	48,590	48,590	41,888
3	48,695	48,695	48,695	51,351	51,351	51,351	44,268
4	51,141	51,141	51,141	53,931	53,931	53,931	46,492
5	53,895	53,895	53,895	56,834	56,834	56,834	48,995
6	58,496	58,496	58,496	61,686	61,686	61,686	53,178
7	63,109	63,109	63,109	66,552	66,552	66,552	57,37
8	64,056	64,056	64,056	67,550	67,550	67,550	58,233
9	65,016	65,016	65,016	68,564	68,564	68,564	50,100
10	65,991	65,991	65,991	69,592	69,592	69,592	59,993
11	66,981	66,981	66,981	70,636	70,636	70,636	60,893
12	68,321	68,321	68,321	72,049	72,049	72,049	62,11

				2022 23			
	Level	WE STATE OF	ATT OF THE REAL PROPERTY.		Level		Level
	10% night	10% Maint Mech	10% Grds Mechanic	16% Head custodian	16% Maint Foreman	16% Grounds Foremen	CUST
	# Steps				# Steps		# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
eps							
1	46,929	46,929	46,929	49,489	49,489	49,489	42,663
2	49,596	49,596	49,596	52,301	52,301	52,301	45,087
3	52,087	52,087	52,087	54,929	54,929	54,929	47,352
4	54,892	54,892	54,892	57,885	57,885	57,885	49,901
5	59,578	59,578	59,578	62,827	62,827	62,827	54,162
6	64,277	64,277	64,277	67,783	67,783	67,783	58,433
7	65,241	65,241	65,241	68,800	68,800	68,800	59,310
8	66,219	66,219	66,219	69,832	69,832	69,832	60,199
9	67,212	67,212	67,212	70,879	70,879	70,879	61,103
10	68,220	68,220	68,220	71,943	71,943	71,943	62,020
11	70,348	70,348	70,348	74,145	74,145	74,145	64,024

## 12-Month Custodian

				2010 11			
	Level	Samuel San	A STATE OF THE		Level		Cavel
	10% night captain	10% Maint Mech	10% Grds Mechanic	16% Head custodian	16% Maint Foreman	16% Grounds Foremen	CUST
	# Steps				# Steps		# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
steps							
1	47,797	47,797	47,797	50,405	50,405	50,405	43,452
2	50,514	50,514	50,514	53,269	53,269	53,269	45,921
3	53,051	53,051	53,051	55,945	55,945	55,945	48,228
4	55,908	55,908	55,908	58,956	58,956	58,956	50,824
5	60,680	60,680	60,680	63,989	63,989	63,989	55,164
6	65,466	65,466	65,466	69,037	69,037	69,037	59,514
7	66,448	66,448	66,448	70,073	70,073	70,073	60,407
8	67,444	67,444	67,444	71,124	71,124	71,124	61,313
9	68,455	68,455	68,455	72,190	72,190	72,190	62,233
10	69,482	69,482	69,482	73,274	73,274	73,274	63,167
11	71,649	71,649	71,649	75,517	75,517	75,517	65,208

# 12-Month Technology

2021-22

			202.	L-22			
	Level	Laval	Level	Level	Lavel	Level	Level
	CABTVDR	DATABASE	NETADMN	JR NET	NETSPEC	RESEARCH	INF SECUR
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
steps							
1	73,771	73,771	89,486	48,676	73,771	73,771	73,771
2	76,172	76,172	91,910	53,720	76,172	76,172	76,172
3	78,646	78,646	94,334	57,725	78,646	78,646	78,646
4	81,204	81,204	96,758	62,660	81,204	81,204	81,204
5	83,843	83,843	99,182	66,115	83,843	83,843	83,843
6	86,568	86,568	101,606	71,243	86,568	86,568	86,568
7	89,379	89,379	104,030	73,851	89,379	89,379	89,379
8	90,720	90,720	105,590	74,959	90,720	90,720	90,720
9	92,080	92,080	107,174	76,083	92,080	92,080	92,080
10	93,461	93,461	108,782	77,224	93,461	93,461	93,461
11	94,863	94,863	110,414	78,382	94,863	94,863	94,863
12	96,760	96,760	112,622	79,950	96,760	96,760	96,760

			2022	2-23			
	Level	Level	Level	Level	Levei	Level	Level
	CABTVDR	DATABASE	NETADMN	JR NET	NETSPEC	RESEARCH	INF SECUR
	# Steps	#Steps	# Steps	#Steps	# Steps	# Steps	#Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
steps							
1	77,581	77,581	93,610	54,714	77,581	77,581	77,581
2	80,101	80,101	96,079	58,793	80,101	80,101	80,101
3	82,706	82,706	98,548	63,819	82,706	82,706	82,706
4	85,394	85,394	101,017	67,338	85,394	85,394	85,394
5	88,170	88,170	103,486	72,561	88,170	88,170	88,170
6	91,033	91,033	105,955	75,217	91,033	91,033	91,033
7	92,398	92,398	107,543	76,346	92,398	92,398	92,398
8	93,783	93,783	109,157	77,491	93,783	93,783	93,783
9	95,190	95,190	110,794	78,653	95,190	95,190	95,190
10	96,618	96,618	112,457	79,832	96,618	96,618	96,618
11	99,314	99,314	115,470	82,193	99,314	99,314	99,314

# 12-Month Technology

			2023	3-24			
	bavel	Level	Level	Level	Level	Leval	Level
	CABTVDR	DATABASE	NETADMN	JR NET	NETSPEC	RESEARCH	INF SECUR
	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
steps							
1	79,016	79,016	95,342	55,726	79,016	79,016	79,016
2	81,583	81,583	97,856	59,881	81,583	81,583	81,583
3	84,236	84,236	100,371	65,000	84,236	84,236	84,236
4	86,974	86,974	102,886	68,584	86,974	86,974	86,974
5	89,801	89,801	105,400	73,903	89,801	89,801	89,801
6	92,717	92,717	107,915	76,609	92,717	92,717	92,717
7	94,107	94,107	109,533	77,758	94,107	94,107	94,107
8	95,518	95,518	111,176	78,925	95,518	95,518	95,518
9	96,951	96,951	112,844	80,108	96,951	96,951	96,951
10	98,405	98,405	114,537	81,309	98,405	98,405	98,405
11	101,151	101,151	117,606	83,714	101,151	101,151	101,151

# Hourly Schedules

	Laver	Level	Lavel	Level	Level	Lavai	Level	Lovel	Level	Lavel	Level
	Aide	Cust- emp	Cust Temp	Safe Mon	Computer Aide	Community Aide	IA	Job Coach	OAAS- 189	SROF18 9	OAAS- 200
	Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	1
1	16.88	20.51	15.00	20.49	25.19	32.49	26.32	25.05	24.00	25.44	
2	18.30	21.68	15.25	21.69	27.15	34.88	28.25	25.65	21.99	25.41	21.99
3	20.48	22.77	15.50	22.77	29.88	37.87	30.68	29.08	24.93	28.42	24.93
4	22.60	23.99	15.75	23.99	32.07	39.97	32.38	31.54	27.06	29.91	27,06
5	24.67	26.04	16.00	26.03	34.76	43.07	34.88	32.76	28.08	31.54	28.08
6	25.76	28.09	16.25	28.10	36.12	44.65	36.17	34.60	29.63	33.27	29.63
7	26.14	28.51	16.50	28.52	36.66	45.32	36.71	35.12	30.07	33.77	30.07
8	26.54	28.94	16.75	28.95	37.22	46.00	37.26	35.65	30.52	34.28	30.52
9	26.93	29.38	17.00	29.38	37.77	46.69	37.82	36.18	30.98	34.79	30.98
10	27.34	29.82	17.25	29.82	38.34	47.39	38.39	36.72	31.44	35.31	31.44
1	28.56	30.78	17,50	30.90	39.78	49.01	39.79	38.13	32.65	36.60	32.62

7.52	Level	Leval	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Level	Leve)	Level	Level
	Aide	Cust- emp	Cust Temp	Safe Mon	Com- puter Aide	Commu- nity Aide	IA	Job Coach	OAAS- 189	SROF 189	OAAS- 200
ī	Steon	# Steps	# Stens	Steps	Stees	# Stees	# Steps	Steus	# Steps	# Steps	# Steps
	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11	11
	17.19	20.89	15.28	20.87	25.66	33.09	26.81	26.13	22.39	25.88	22.39
	18.64	22.08	15.53	22.10	27.65	35.53	28.78	27.90	23.89	27.43	23.89
	20.86	23.19	15.79	23.20	30.44	38.57	31.25	29.61	25.40	28.95	25.40
	23.02	24.43	16.04	24.43	32.66	40.71	32.98	32.12	27.56	30.46	27.56
	25.13	26.52	16.30	26.51	35.40	43.86	35.53	33.37	28.60	32.12	28.60
	26.24	28.61	16.55	28.62	36.79	45.48	36.84	35.24	30.17	33.89	30.17
	26.62	29.04	16.81	29.05	37.34	46.16	37.39	35.77	30.63	34.40	30.63

	27.03	29.48	17.06	29.48	37,90	46.85	37.95	36.31	31.09	34.91	31.09
25.5	27.43	29.92	17.31	29.93	38.47	47.55	38.52	36.85	31.55	35.44	31.55
	27.85	30.37	17.57	30.38	39.05	48.27	39.10	37.40	32.03	35.97	32.03
	29.09	31.35	17.82	31.47	40.52	49.92	40.53	38.84	33.25	37.27	33.22

# APPENDIX "A"

# Technical Differentials:

Maintenance Foreman	\$1,600
Grounds Foreman	\$1,600

# Stipends:

Lead Payroll Clerk	\$2,500
Head Dispatcher	\$2,500

### APPENDIX "B"

### Bedford Central School District Non-Marital Domestic Partners

Domestic Partners are defined as two same sex individuals who share a household and-who have a relationship of financial interdependence and mutual care. The following are required for eligibility in the Bedford Central School District's health benefits plans.

- Partners must be the same sex, and
- Partners must be legal age to marry in New York State, and',
- Partners must not be related by blood to a degree of closeness which would prohibit marriage in New York State, and
- Partners must have resided together for at least twelve months and intend to do so indefinitely, and
- ❖ Partners must sign the Affidavit of Domestic partnership, and
- Partners who reside in New York City must register with the City Domestic Partnership Registry and provide the Bedford Central School District, Human Resources Department, with the Certification of Domestic Partnership, and
- Partners must meet the other requirements and limitations of eligibility that pertain to all employees of Bedford Central School District, and
- Partners must present evidence of financial interdependence and responsibility for mutual care. Evidence of two of the following:
- 1. Joint ownership of property (i.e., real estate) or a joint mortgage or joint lease that is at least twelve months old.
- 2. Partners have been listed on each other's will for at least twelve months.
- 3. Partner has been beneficiary of the employee's ERS retirement plan of at least twelve months.
- 4. Partners hold general power of attorney or health care power of attorney for each other.
- 5. Domestic partnership agreement that creates personal and financial interdependence including joint and several liability for each other's debts and expenses and responsibility for mutual care.

The employee must inform the Bedford Central School District, Human Resources Department within 30 days if these criteria are no longer being met.

### APPENDIX "B"

# $\label{lem:bedford} \begin{tabular}{ll} Bedford \ Central \ School \ District \\ Affidavit \ of \ Domestic \ Partnership \\ \end{tabular}$

We,·an	id	certify that we
policy attached to this affidavit. We undo School District, Human Resources Depar requirements in any respect could result	eligibility requirements under Bedford Cent erstand that falsely certifying or failing to inf tment in writing within 30 days, If we cease in disciplinary action, which may include ter ought against us for any losses, including med	orm Bedford Central to meet eligibility rmination of
We are each other's sole domestic partne	er and intend to remain so indefinitely.	
We are jointly responsible for each other primary residence.	s's common welfare, we share financial obliga	ations, and we share our
We are of the same sex, and are not relat prohibit marriage in the State of New Yo	ed by blood to a degree of closeness which work. We are of legal age to marry.	rould
We are each other's sole domestic partner in another domestic partnership within t	er, We are not married to anyone and have no the last twelve months.	ot been involved
Our domestic partnership has been in ex least twelve months, prior to the effective	istence and we have shared a primary resider re date of this affidavit.	nce for at
We certify, under penalty of perjury, tha	at the foregoing statements are true and corre	ect
Signature of Employee	Employee Name (please print)	Date
Notary Public (seal or stamp)		
Signature of Domestic Partner	Name (please print)	Date
Notary Public (sealor stamp)		